Print Preview

https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

CHAPTER 43.15: PLAT APPROVAL, ABBREVIATED PLAT SUBDIVISIONS,

Section

43.15.005
43.15.010
43.15.012
43.15.015
43.15.016
43.15.021
43.15.022
43.15.025
43.15.032

43.15.035
43.15.040
43.15.045
43.15.049
43.15.051
43.15.052
43.15.053
43.15.054
43.15.055
43.15.065
43.15.070
43.15.075

AND VACATIONS

General administration

Preapplication conference

Forty-acre exemption

Preliminary plat [Repealed]

Preliminary plat submittal and approval

Public use easement acceptance procedure

Waivers

Abbreviated plats

Elimination or modification of utility, drainage, sanitation, slope, snow storage,
buffer, and screening easements

Vacations

Section line and state recognized RS-2477 easement vacations
Plat approval [Repealed]

Final plat; general provisions

Final plat; submitted

Final plat; plat note

Final plat; certificates

Final plat; surveyor requirements

Final plat; dedications, improvements, recording

Waiver of standards for resubdivision of substandard lots
Right-of-way acquisition plats

Variance; standards for approval

43.15.005 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION.

(A) The platting board shall act upon applications for preliminary plats, variances, public use
easements, plat note amendments, elimination or modification of platted utility, drainage,
sanitation, slope, snow storage, buffer, and screening easements, and vacations of public interest
within the procedures outlined by AS 29.40.110 and this title.

(B) The platting officer shall act upon applications for abbreviated plats, waivers, 40-acre
exemptions, and right-of-way acquisition plats.

(1) The platting officer shall determine whether agency, department, or public comments
provided are within the regulatory authority of this chapter and whether they should apply to

1 of27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview a platting action. https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

2 of 27

(C) Leaseholds located within municipal airports are exempt from the requirement to plat.

(D) Commercial leases of ten years or greater are exempt from this title.

(Ord. 17-033, § 42, 2017: Ord. 15-036, § 7, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.010 PREAPPLICATION CONFERENCE.

(A) Before submitting an application requiring platting authority approval, a petitioner shall attend
a conference with the platting staff. The purposes of the conference are to inform the staff of the
petitioner’s development plans, and to inform the petitioner of the borough's development policies,
public improvements, and platting procedures and requirements as they pertain to the proposed
application. Borough staff may recommend modifications to conform the proposed application to
those policies, procedures, and requirements. The platting officer may waive a preapplication
conference if the platting officer finds that it is not necessary to accomplish these purposes.

(B) At least ten business days before the preapplication conference, the petitioner shall submit to
the platting staff the proposed platting action with enough detail so the platting officer can gain a
full understanding of the petitioner’s intentions.

(C) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 9, 2017]

(D) No proceeding under this section binds the platting authority in their review of any plat, or
relieves a petitioner of the responsibility of independently becoming familiar with the procedures
and standards for approval of an application under this title.

(Ord. 17-033, § 9, 2017; Ord. 15-036, § 8, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.012 FORTY-ACRE EXEMPTION.

(A) Purpose clause. The purpose of this section is to allow the land owner to divide or combine
large parcels of land by document in an expedited manner.

(B) Exemptions. The platting officer shall exempt parcels from the provisions of this title where all
the following conditions are met:

(1) The smallest parcel created is 40 acres in size, or is one-sixteenth of a section as defined
by “aliquot part”;

(2) The parcel is to be conveyed by deed;

(3) The parcels or tracts created can be described by:
12/8/2022, 12:14 PM

4
i
j
1



Print Preview

3 of 27

(a) aliquot part; or https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

(b) ametes and bounds description, provided the description is under the seal of a land
surveyor;

(4) The document does not alter:
(a) an existing plat of record, including tracts on a cadastral plat; or
(b) parcels created via the waiver process;

(5) A certificate to plat shall be required, consistent with the requirements of MSB
43.15.053(E);

(6) Signatures of consent are provided on affidavits from all parties holding a legal or
equitable interest in the property to be recorded with the document;

(7) No more than four parcels shall be created from the parent parcel(s);

(8) The applicant demonstrates that legal access as defined by MSB 43.20.120 exists to all
parcels or tracts created and is suitable for future borough standard road construction.

(a) The suitability of legal access for future road construction shall be documented by the
applicant based on the following information available from existing records within the
Matanuska-Susitna Borough:

(i) air photos;

(i) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 43, 2017]
(iii) topographic mapping; and

(iv) other available data.

(b) The platting officer shall review within ten working days the legal access
documentation and its “suitability” for future road construction.

(c) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, §43, 2017]

() Access for parcels located two miles beyond the limits of the core comprehensive
planning area may be from a trail shown to be constructible to the trail standards
listed in MSB 43.20.060; however, no trail construction is required for 40-acre
exemption approval.

(d) The applicant shall be required to submit plan, profile, and cross-sections if existing

grades along proposed route exceed 10 percent, or if existing utilities or other land/water
12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview features appear to create impediments to RSB/ oeeErefrRlisErs BRI B eusrttpaRorough/cgi...

Manual standards;

(9) An as-built of all structures or improvements within the parcel boundaries is provided, or
a letter from a land surveyor stating that no setback violations exist or will be created by this
platting action; and

(10) For parcels described by metes and bounds, all parcel corners shall be surveyed and
monumented and a record of survey or a detailed sealed drawing prepared by a land surveyor
shall be recorded with the 40-acre exemption document. The survey shall be tied to at least
two platted subdivision corners or two aliquot part corners set by the state or federal
government, or land surveyor, or any combination of the preceding.

(C) Exemption document. The document exempting a parcel from the provisions of this title shall
be reviewed by the platting officer. The platting officer shall approve the exemption document
within ten working days once the exemption submittal meets the conditions of this subsection.
Upon approval of the document, the platting officer shall execute the approved document, signed
by the planning director, and it shall be affixed with the platting board seal. It is the responsibility of
the applicant to pay all appropriate fees.

(D) The decision of the platting officer in this matter is final unless appealed in accordance with
MSB 43.35.

(Ord. 17-033, § 43, 2017: Ord. 16-018, 88 7, 8, 2016; Ord. 15-036, 8 9, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.15.015 Preliminary Plat. [Repealed by Ord. 15-036, § 10, 2015]

43.15.016 PRELIMINARY PLAT SUBMITTAL AND APPROVAL.

(A) An application for conceptual plat approval shall be submitted with plat copies as needed, with
the following data and appropriate fees: |

(1) topographicinformation of the proposed subdivision and surrounding area within 100
feet relative to existing and proposed property lines. Contours shall be a minimum five feet if
the ground slope is less than 10 percent and ten feet if the ground slope is greater than 10
percent;

(a) Topographic information shall be stamped by a land surveyor verifying current
conditions;

(b) Platted subdivision lots are exempt from providing topographic information when:

(i) eliminating a lot line; or
4 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview

(i) moving a lot line where the aggreg&®s:4Mot FrdsprobishiesPeHai¥eaneskesusigRorough/ogi...

2,000 square feet;

(2) public rights-of-way and platted easements within 100 feet of the proposed subdivision
boundary;

(3) adjacent property lines shown with dashed lines to show their general relationship to the
proposed subdivision;

(4) approximate locations of visible existing roadways, driveways, sewage systems, wells,
above-ground utilities, excavations, bridges, and culverts within 100 feet of the proposed
subdivision boundary unless access is denied to the surveyor;

(5) preliminary horizontal location of streets, water supply, sewage disposal systems, or other
public improvement details to indicate conformance with municipal standards;

(6) soils and engineering data as required by this title.

(@) Applications proposing community or municipal water supply and/or wastewater
disposal systems shall submit a conceptual plan.

(b) Wells and septics on any property within the protective well radius of a proposed
community or municipal water system shall be shown relative to the existing and
proposed property lines.

(B) All plats, maps, drawings, or other illustrations required for conceptual review under these

regulations shall show the following:

50f27

(1) title block;

(2) subdivision name;

(3) scale;

(4) north arrow;

(5) date;

(6) subdivider's name and address;

(7) surveyor’s or other preparer’s address;

(8) description of the parcel being subdivided;

(9) sheet number;

12/8/2022, 12:14 PM

]



Print Preview (10) total area; and https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

(11) vicinity map which includes the following:

(@) scale of one inch equals one mile showing a 20-square-mile area minimum (rural);
one inch equals 300 feet showing a one-sixteenth-square-mile area (urban), or as
necessary to indicate the subdivision and adjacent property;

(b) townships, ranges, and sections; and

(c) principal road systems, major water bodies and watercourses, and location of
subdivision;

(12) dedicated rights-of-way, patent reservations, section line easements, and other
easements or reservations, public or private, within the proposed subdivision boundaries
showing location, dimensions, and purposes;

(13) the location of existing improvements within the proposed subdivision, such as
structures as defined in MSB 17.55, roadways, driveways, sewage systems, wells, above-
ground utilities, excavations, bridges, and culverts relative to the existing and proposed
property lines;

(14) the location of water bodies, drainage courses, and, when required by MSB 17.29.160,
flood hazard information, within the proposed subdivision;

(15) proposed lot lines, tract lines, utility and other easements, rights-of-way, including
approximate dimensions and area of all lots and tracts, approximate curve radii, tangent
lengths, and similar information;

(16) proposed public or open space areas.

(C) Within ten business days of submittal, the application shall be accepted or rejected for failure
to meet the requirements of subsections (A) and (B) of this section. The rejection shall be in writing
and shall state the deficient items. Once the deficiencies are corrected, the application shall be
immediately accepted.

(D) The statutory 60-day period for approval or nonapproval begins on the date the application is
accepted for public hearing.

(E) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 12, 2017]

(F) Public hearings for vacations may occur at the same time as the preliminary plat approval
hearing.

(G) The applicant may acquire any required “other agency” review.
6 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Previgly  preliminary plat approval; effect and duration. PHESUITEC SeR LSS Of & pratpsrpBorough/cgi...
plat is as follows:

(1) The approval of a preliminary plat does not constitute approval of the subdivision or the
acceptance of any dedication within the subdivision, but only authorizes the applicant to
prepare the final plat. Application for approval of a final plat, including any final plat submitted
under a phased development master plan, may be submitted only after approval of the
preliminary plat, and only while the approval of the preliminary plat remains effective;

(2) Approval of a preliminary plat expires 72 months after the date of the written notice of
platting authority action, unless the platting authority first extends its duration at the request
of the applicant. The platting officer may grant two extensions, not to exceed two years each.
Only the platting board has authority to grant additional extensions. The platting authority
may approve an extension only if it finds that the conditions supporting approval of the
preliminary plat have not materially changed;

(3) Where a subdivider intends to develop a subdivision in phases, approval of the
preliminary plat shall be conditioned upon the subdivider's compliance with a phased
development master plan prepared by a subdivider and approved by the platting board.
Approval of a master plan for phased development expires 72 months after the date of the
written notice of platting board action unless an extension is approved by the platting
authority in the same manner extensions of preliminary plats are approved under subsection
(H)(2) of this section;

(4) An appeal from the decision of the platting authority regarding plat approval shall follow
MSB 43.35, Reconsideration and Appeals. Filing an appeal or reconsideration shall extend the
72-month approval period until the appeal or reconsideration is resolved;

(5) Asubdivider may proceed upon an expired preliminary plat or master plan for phased
development only with a new application;

(6) An applicant may seek modification of a preliminary plat or phased development master
plan prior to expiration of the plan or plan approval or prior to the expiration of an extension
granted pursuant to MSB 43.10.060(B). The applicant seeking modification shall pay a public
hearing fee and meet the requirements of MSB 43.10.065. There shall be no petitions to
modify vacations approved by the assembly unless the petition to modify involves an area of
land not affected by the approved vacation; and

(7) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 14, 2017]

(8) A plat (master plans for phased development, abbreviated plats, regular plats) approved
under provisions of the former MSB Titles 16 and 27 shall be granted an administrative
extension of an additional five years effective from the date of adoption of the ordinance

codified in this section. This five-year extension is in addition to all previously granted
7 0f 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview  aytansions and starts at the end of the previouWéﬁWé@%%%%ﬁ%Mﬁﬁé‘@ki@%W°r°“gh/°gi"-

or original plat expiration date, whichever is later.

() The platting authority’s action on an approved preliminary plat shall be noted on the final plat,
with a reference to the date by which that action was taken.

(Ord. 17-033, §5 10 - 14, 2017; Ord. 16-018, § 9, 2016; Ord. 15-036, § 11, 2015)
43.15.021 PUBLIC USE EASEMENT ACCEPTANCE PROCEDURE.

(A) Prior to acceptance by the borough and recordation, the offeror for a public use easement
shall submit a legal description of the proposed easement together with a drawing depicting the
location of the proposed easement. If the proposed easement is in the form of a metes and bounds
description, the description shall be submitted under the seal of a land surveyor. In lieu of a written
legal description, a drawing showing the location and dimensions of the public use easement under
the seal of a land surveyor shall be submitted.

(B) The legal description or drawing shall be reviewed for accuracy and completeness. If
deficiencies are found, a written explanation of any deficiencies will be returned to the offeror
within ten working days of the date the application is received. Once the deficiencies have been
corrected, the public use easement will be processed.

(C) The offeror shall prove that the public use easement is in a practical location where road
construction is feasible in accordance with the Subdivision Construction Manual. The offeror shall
be required to submit plan, profile, and cross-sections if existing grades along proposed route
exceed 10 percent, or if existing utilities or other land/water features appear to create impediments
to road design meeting Subdivision Construction Manual standards.

(D) If road construction is proposed, all permits and approvals from federal, state, or other
municipal regulatory agencies applicable to the construction of the road shall be submitted to
platting staff.

(E) Public use easements shall be surveyed, monumented on the exterior, or the centerline if
approved by the platting officer, and either shown on a record of survey, an associated plat, or a
detailed sealed drawing prepared by a land surveyor which shall be recorded with the public use
easement document.

(F) Itisthe responsibility of the offeror to pay all applicable fees.

(G) In acting on applications under this section the platting authority shall use the standards and
procedures of MSB 43.10.060. Public noticing shall be in accordance with MSB 43.10.065.

(H) Upon compliance with subsections (A) through (G) of this section, a public use easement form

with the approved legal description, bearing acknowledgment of acceptance by the borough and
8 of 27 PP & P & & P Y g12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Prewifing signed by all individuals holding a legal or equitdisid 1RtErasenrPtikinspurs My daSunigrovet/es..
recorded. This provision does not require the signatures of holders of subsurface estate interests in
the land being dedicated.

() Approval of an application under this section expires 72 months after the date of the written
notification of the platting authority action, unless an extension is approved by the platting
authority in the same manner extensions of preliminary plats are approved under MSB
43.15.016(H)(2). |

(Ord. 17-033, § 44, 2017: Ord. 16-018, §§ 10—12, 2016; Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.022 WAIVERS.

(A) Those portions of this title specifically addressing the preparation, submission for approval,
and recording of a plat shall not apply to waiver subdivisions for which the preparation, submission
for approval, and recording of a plat has been waived, upon proof that:

(1) each parcel has legal and physical access to a constructed public road, and that the road
utilized for access meets the following minimum requirements, unless the state or local
government has accepted responsibility for construction and maintenance:

(a) Roads shall be constructed to a residential standard unless superseded by other
provisions elsewhere within this title; ‘

(b) The roadway, including any slopes, cuts, and fills actually used for access, is located
entirely within the easement or right-of-way dedicated to the public or over other legal
access, as defined in MSB 43.20.120.

(c) If awaiver is proposed along an existing maintained borough road, the petitioner
shall not be required to upgrade said road;

(2) each lot or tract created is five acres in size or larger and the waiver of subdivision
requirements will create no more than four parcels, an unlimited number of waivers from the
original parent parcel are allowed;

(3) no dedication of public right-of-way, easement or other public area is required;
(4) proof has been submitted demonstrating that reasonable utility easements are provided;

(5) prior to recordation, all parcel corners shall be surveyed and monumented. A record of
survey shall be recorded in the State Recording District Office. The survey shall be tied to at
least two platted subdivision corners or two aliquot part corners set by the state or federal
government, or land surveyor, or any combination of the preceding;

9 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview (6) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 17, 2017] https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

(7) the parcels or tracts created can be described by:
(a) aliquot part; or

(b) a metes and bounds description, provided the description is under the seal of a land
surveyor; and

(8) the applicant for approval of the plat waiver provides supporting written information
including all soils and engineering data as required by this title.

(B) All waiver requests shall be made to the platting officer and shall be accompanied by:

(1) one completed waiver application form with tax official certification and notarized
signature of the owner, and notarized signature of the mortgagee, if applicable;

(2) aneat, legible drawing on a sheet of 8.5-inch by 11-inch paper, or even increment of
paper, showing location of markers, recorded easements, improvements, parent parcel
boundaries, severed parcel boundaries, arrow indicating north, section, township and range;

(3) areview and reservation, if applicable, of utility easements;

(4) The proof of ownership shall be a certificate to plat or a preliminary commitment for title
insurance in accordance with MSB 43.05.050.

(5) All waiver subdivision requests shall be submitted to the platting officer for approval.
Within ten business days of submittal, the application shall be accepted, or rejected for failure
to meet the requirements of the afore subsections.

(C) Public notice of waiver subdivisions shall follow the procedures of MSB 43.10.065, pertaining to
actions requiring a public hearing, and written comments on the waiver application shall be
accepted. A public hearing is not required for waiver subdivisions.

(D) The decision of the platting officer in this matter is final unless appealed in accordance with
MSB 43.35.

(Ord. 17-033, §§ 15 - 17, 2017; Ord. 16-018, § 13, 2016: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.025 ABBREVIATED PLATS.

(A) The platting officer shall review and act upon all preliminary plats that shall only move or
eliminate lot lines, or create no more than four tracts or lots, and that shall not:

(1) deny legal and physical access to and from all lots or tracts created by, or adjacent to, the
10 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview gy djvision, or require construction of improveR{BF I HEEar)ibng ooy kotfripnyskrsupmaBorough/cgi..
improvement of an existing, publicly dedicated right-of-way to current standards; nor

(2) alter a dedicated street or right-of-way, or require any dedication; nor
(3) require a vacation of a public dedication; nor
(4) require a variance from a subdivision regulation.

(B) Plats to remove lot lines on a subdivision plat of record are exempt from provisions of the
code which require:

(1) usable area report submittals;
(2) legal and physical access;

(3) as-built survey; and

(4) topographic information.

(C) In acting on an application under this section, the platting officer shall use the standards and
procedures used by the platting board in acting on applications under MSB 43.10.060. The platting
officer shall approve or disapprove the plat within 30 days of the submission of the application.

(D) The decision of the platting officer in this matter is final unless appealed in accordance with
MSB 43.35.

(E) Public notice of abbreviated plats shall follow the procedures of MSB 43.10.065, pertaining to
actions requiring a public hearing.

(Ord. 16-018, 8 14, 2016; Ord. 15-036, 8 12, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.15.032 ELIMINATION OR MODIFICATION OF UTILITY, DRAINAGE,
SANITATION, SLOPE, SNOW STORAGE, BUFFER, AND SCREENING
EASEMENTS.

(A) The platting board shall review and act upon all petitions requesting elimination or
modification of platted utility, drainage, sanitation, slope, snow storage, buffer, and screening
easements; provided, that:

(1) the authority having jurisdiction over the easement consents;

(@) however, if the beneficiary of an easement refuses to authorize a vacation, the
platting board may approve the vacation if the following conditions are met:

11 0f27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview

(B)

2)

(i) there are currently no existing impPEREATERESATEHRSHRe SOy Ak MakskavgimgRerough/cei...

easement beneficiary or a portion of the easement will remain which includes the
improvements;

(i) if necessary a substitute easement is provided; and
(ii) findings of facts support granting the vacation;

if the elimination or modification of easement is due to an encroachment, an as-built

survey must be submitted with the original petition; and

3)

a vacation resolution is recorded along with a graphic representation showing the specific

area eliminated and any alternate easements proposed.

In acting on applications under this section the platting board shall use the standards and
procedures under MSB 43.10.060. The platting board shall act upon the application within 60 days
of the acceptance for public hearing.

(C) Public noticing shall be in conformance with MSB 43.10.065.

(D) Approval of an application under this section expires 72 months after the date of the written

notification of platting authority action, unless an extension is approved by the platting authority in

the same manner extensions of preliminary plats are approved under MSB 43.15.016(H)(2).

(Ord. 17-033, § 45, 2017: Ord. 16-018, 8 15, 2016: Ord. 11-072, 8 3 (part), 2012)

43.15.035 VACATIONS.

(A) All applicants and actions for vacations shall conform to AS 29.40.120 through 29.40.160.

(B) A dedication to public use of land or interests in land may be vacated if the dedication is no

longer necessary for present or future public use. The platting board shall review applications for

vacations as follows:

12 of 27

(M

The platting board shall ordinarily approve vacations of public rights-of-way if:

(a) the vacation is conditioned upon the final approval of a plat affecting the same land
which provides equal or better access to all areas affected by the vacation; or

(b) the surrounding area is fully developed and all planned or needed rights-of-way and
utilities are constructed; or

(c) the right-of-way is not being used, a road is impossible or impractical to construct,
and alternative access has been provided;

12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview (9)  The platting board shall not ordinarily appfSPEVS¥atrOAPBTshBEEqmtaRdMatapv kA HtnaBorough/cgi...

13 of 27

@

(a) the surrounding area in which the vacation is sought is undeveloped or is developing
and equivalent or better access is not provided;

(b) the vacation is of a public right-of-way providing access to a lake, river, or other area
with public interest or value, unless alternate or better access is provided or exists;

(c) the proposed vacation would limit opportunities for interconnectivity with adjacent
parcels, whether developed or undeveloped;

(d) objections to the vacation are made by persons with an interest in land adjacent to or
affected by the vacation, or by any government agency or department which has a
responsibility to the public which may be affected by the vacation;

(i) the platting board may approve the vacation if the following conditions are met:

(aa) there are currently no existing improvements within the subject easement
of the easement beneficiary or a portion of the easement will remain which
includes the improvements;

(bb) if necessary a substitute easement is provided; and
(co) findings of facts support granting the vacation;

(3) Inother cases, the platting board shall review requested vacations on a case-by-case basis
to determine whether the property is necessary or desirable for present or future public use.
Public rights-of-way in areas shall be assumed to have a public use unless proven otherwise.

Title to a vacated area shall be determined as follows:

(1) Title attaches to the lot or lands bordering on the vacated area in proportionate amounts,
except that if the area originally was dedicated by different persons, original boundary lines
shall be adhered to so that the area which lies on one side of the boundary line shall attach to
the abutting property on that side, and the area which lies on the other side of the boundary
line shall attach to the property on that side. The portion of a vacated street which lies within
the limits of a platted addition attaches to the lots of the platted addition bordering on the
area. However, if a public square is vacated, the title to it vests in the city, if it lies within a city,
or in the borough if it lies within the borough area outside cities, and if the property vacated is
a lot or tract, title vests in the rightful owner.

(2) If a municipality acquired the vacated area for legal consideration or by express
dedication to and acceptance by the municipality other than as a prerequisite to plat approval,
the fair market value of the vacated area shall be deposited with the platting authority before

the final act of vacation, to be paid over to the municipality upon final vacation.
12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview (3)  Other provisions of this subsection notwitHéEsSHATHE, Wensbliting ey Ak ikatranskadhsimaBaroush/ogi...
or a portion of a vacated area should be dedicated to another public purpose, and if so, title to
the area vacated and held for another public purpose remains in the borough or city, as
applicable.

(D) Adecision to grant a vacation is not effective unless approved by the city council if the vacated
area is a street or public land of a city, or by the assembly in other cases. The platting board shall
immediately give notice to the council or assembly of a vacation which is approved. The council or
assembly shall have 30 days from the date of the notice to either consent to the vacation or veto it.
Notice of veto of the vacation shall be immediately given to the platting board. Failure to act on the
vacation within 30 days shall be considered to be consent to the vacation.

(E) Public noticing shall be in conformance with MSB 43.10.065. Notice of platting authority
approval shall be sent to the public body having jurisdiction in accordance with MSB 43.10.065.

(F) Approval of an application under this section expires 72 months after the date of the written
notification of platting authority action, unless an extension is approved by the platting authority in
the same manner extensions of preliminary plats are approved under MSB 43.15.016(H)(2).

(Ord. 17-033, 88 18 - 21, 2017; Ord. 16-018, § 16, 2016; Ord. 15-036, § 13, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.15.040 SECTION LINE AND STATE RECOGNIZED RS-2477 EASEMENT
VACATIONS.

(A) This title provides standards for the vacation of section line easements and state recognized
RS-2477 easements, also referred to as rights-of-way acquired under former 43 U.S.C. 932.

(B) An application for vacation of a section line easement or RS-2477 easement shall contain the
following:

(1) a preliminary finding of approval from the appropriate agency of the state of Alaska;

(2) documentation by a land surveyor establishing the existence of a valid section line
easement or RS-2477 easement within the area to be vacated, stating the width of the section
line easement or RS-2477 easement and verifying the existence and width of any adjoining
section line easements or RS-2477 easements;

(3) legal description of the section line easement or RS-2477 easement proposed for
vacation;

(4) reason for vacation request;
(5) platcopies, as needed, of a section line or RS-2477 vacation plat, drawn to the

requirement of the state of Alaska;
14 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview (6)  current Alaska State Department of Transg8etiEw"asedepiitbithingenmti oK MuaprskaptriRorongh/egi...
of Natural Resources final approval required prior to recordation pursuant to AS 19.30.410;

(7) [Repealed by Ord. 16-018, § 17, 2016]

(8) demonstration that a reasonably comparable, established alternate right-of-way or
means of access exists that is sufficient to satisfy all present and reasonably foreseeable uses
pursuant to AS 19.30.410. In making this determination, the platting board shall consider
comments from utilities concerning the adequacy of alternative access to provide for utility
facilities and services; and

(9) demonstration that the vacation shall meet the standards set forth under MSB 43.15.035.

(©) Public notice of fhe vacation shall follow the procedures of MSB 43.10.065. Notice of platting
authority approval shall be sent to the public body having jurisdiction in accordance with MSB
43.10.065.

(Ord. 17-033, 8 46, 2017: Ord. 16-018, 88 17, 18, 2016; Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.15.045 Plat Approval. [Repealed by Ord. 15-036, § 14, 2015]

43.15.049 FINAL PLAT; GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(A) Board review. The platting officer shall review all plats subdividing lands within the borough
boundaries.

(B) Review for deficiencies. The platting officer shall review and check all final plats for
deficiencies. Where deficiencies are found, the plat shall be returned to the subdivider for alteration
or correction by the land surveyor responsible for the survey and the plat. The platting officer shall
approve or disapprove the final plat within 20 days of submittal of the plat. If disapproved, the final
plat shall be returned to the subdivider with specification of the deficiencies. The platting officer
shall approve or disapprove the second final plat within ten days of resubmittal.

(C) Dedication and adoption. All streets and other public areas shown on the plat shall be
dedicated to the public for the use and purpose specified in the plat upon:

(1) owner’'s signature on the plat or affidavit;
(2) planning and land use director’s approval; and
(3) recordation of the plat in compliance with this title.

(D) Duplication of names. Road and subdivision names may not duplicate existing road or
15 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Previgiy division names in spelling or sound to avoid conff@iSANHHPedgREghipg ey AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

16 of 27

(E) Service area boundary requirements. It shall be a condition of subdivision approval that no lot,
tract, or parcel be split by a service area boundary. Proposals to create a lot, tract, or parcel that
would be split by a service area boundary must realign the service area boundary prior to final plat
approval.

(F) Utility easements.

(1) Asnow storage easement if granted can be placed within a utility easement if there is no
overriding surface conflict.

(2) A utility easement can be placed within a slope easement.
(G) Minor plat alterations.

(1) The purpose of this subsection is to resolve platting issues and/or improve the subdivision
design and function without burdening staff, the petitioner, and the board with the additional
time and costs to rehear the case.

(2) The platting officer is authorized to approve minor changes to an approved preliminary
plat or master plan during review of the final plat for the following items. Any amendment or
modification of the preliminary plat shall be limited to the following:

(@) The total number of lots may be reduced;
(b) The total number of lots may not be increased;

() Individual lot sizes may not be reduced by more than 20 percent per lot, and at no
point to less than the minimum requirements that the preliminary plat was approved
under. The aggregate of the proposed reductions shall not exceed one acre;

(d) Proposed rights-of-way or easements may be moved up to 25 feet if approved by the
platting officer;

(e) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 47, 2017]
(f) Approved external accesses cannot be changed; and
() Amendments and modifications cannot create setback violations.

(H) Prior to final plat recordation, all permits and approvals from federal, state, or municipal
regulatory agencies shall be submitted to platting staff.

(I) Prior to final plat approval, State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC)

review and approval are required for community or municipal water supply systems or wastewater
12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Prevéqgrp osal systems (certificate to operate, if required W%ﬁmwcodepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusimaBorough/cgi...

(1)  As-builts or record drawings for any community or municipal water and wastewater
disposal systems installed are required.

(2) Wells used for community or municipal water systems shall be shown with their
protective well radius.

(a) Protective well radii extending more than 125 feet on adjoining property are
prohibited unless:

(i) an easement is obtained; or

(iiy that portion of the adjoining property that is inside the well radius and beyond
125 feet is deemed unusable for septic area.

(Ord. 17-033, § 47, 2017: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.051 FINAL PLAT; SUBMITTED.

(A) The final plat shall be prepared in substantial conformance with this section and the
preliminary plat as approved.

(B) The subdivider shall submit the original of the final plat, which shall be reproducible, drawn to
scale, on mylar or equivalent, and be of good drafting in ink, with lettering by template instrument
or equivalent.

(C) The sheet sizes shall be 18 inches by 24 inches, 24 inches by 36 inches, 31.5 inches by 34
inches, or 32 inches by 36 inches, in accordance with the State Recorder’s Office requirements.

(D) If more than one sheet is necessary to accurately portray the lands subdivided, an index map
shall be provided on the first sheet showing the entire subdivision and indicating the portion
contained on each sheet. Each sheet shall show the particular number of that sheet and the total
number of sheets included, as well as clearly labeled match lines to show where other sheets
adjoin. When more than one sheet is submitted, all sheets shall be the same size.

(E) Areadable standard scale shall be used of one inch equals 50 feet, 100 feet, or increments of
100, or as allowed by the platting officer. In all cases, the scale used shall be clearly stated.

(F) The name of the subdivision shall be shown in bold letters in the title block of each sheet
included.

(G) A prominent north arrow shall be drawn on every sheet. The basis of bearing shall be clearly
stated. No magnetic bearings shall be allowed.

17 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Previgly - All monuments to be of record shall be adequabéRFdE¥eritdePMiiRsAEEAtTRE SaStigRoroueh/cgl...

(I) Sufficient survey data shall be shown to positively describe the bounds of every lot, block,
street, easement, and other areas shown on the plat, as well as the other boundaries of the lands
subdivided.

() All distances shall be shown in feet and to the nearest one-hundredth foot, and in accordance
with the definition of a United States survey foot adopted by the United States Bureau of
Standards. All measurements shall refer to the horizontal plane.

(K) The course of every boundary line shown on the plat shall be indicated by a direct bearing
reference. All bearings shown shall be given to the nearest degree, minute, and second of arc.

(L) Curve data shall be stated in terms of radius, central angle, tangent, length of curve, chord
length and bearing. Curve data shall be shown for the line affected, and the information shall be
tabulated with proper reference.

(M) The true boundary shall be clearly indicated on the plat by bold line.
(N) Allinterior excepted parcels shall be clearly indicated and labeled “not a part of this plat.”

(0) All adjoining properties shall be identified, and where the adjoining properties are a part of a
recorded subdivision, the name of that subdivision and the plat number shall be shown. If the
subdivision platted is a resubdivision of a part or whole of a previously recorded subdivision,
sufficient ties shall be shown to controlling lines appearing on the earlier plat to permit an overlay
to be made. The fact it is a resubdivision shall be stated as a subtitle following the name of the
subdivision wherever it appears on the plat.

(P) The plat shall clearly show the location, dimension, and uses of all plottable easements created
by this plat and those easements of record as indicated in the certificate to plat. if unplottable, the
easements shall be referenced within a plat note.

(Q) No strip of land shall be reserved by the subdivider unless the strip of land is of sufficient size
and shape to be of some practical use or service, as determined by the platting officer.

(R) All blocks shall be numbered in consecutive order. All lots within each block shall be numbered
in consecutive order. All streets shall be named, numbered, or lettered in a manner acceptable to
the platting officer and in compliance with MSB 11.20.

(S) The purpose of all area dedicated to the public or private shall be clearly indicated or stated on
the plat.

(T) Avicinity map is required which shall include the following;:

(1) scale of one inch equals one mile, showing a 20-square-mile area minimum (rural); one
18 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview jnch equals 300 feet showing a one-sixteenth-sqHBT e et @ybithing sepesk Mpeguriatusieaipmonghv/egi...

19 of 27

subdivision and adjacent property or as approved by the platting officer;
(2) townships, ranges, and sections; and

(3) principal road systems, major water bodies and watercourses, and location of subdivision
substantially centered within the vicinity map.

(U) Two blue lines shall be submitted for final review.

(Ord. 17-033, §§ 22, 23, 48, 2017; Ord. 15-036, § 15, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.052 FINAL PLAT; PLAT NOTE.

(A)  Written notes. Written notes may not ordinarily appear on any subdivision plat except as
explicifly provided in this title or as reasonably necessary to accomplish the purposes of this title.
Notes relating to land use may not appear unless otherwise required by law. Notes relating to land
use which appear on any plat shall be effective only to the extent that the notes do not conflict with
land use regulations adopted by the borough.

(B) Flood hazard area identification. All lots, blocks, tracts, or parcels affected by the floodplain
regulations adopted by the borough shall be noted on the face of the plat. The notification shall be
a written statement, stating the affected lots, blocks, and tracts by description and the reports and
date of the reports used to make the determination of the floodplain. A flood hazard area, if
identified, shall be labeled “Flood Hazard Area” in bold, solid, one-inch-high letters. The base flood
elevation and floodplain shall be shown as required by MSB 17.29.160, General standards for flood
hazard reduction.

(C) Water supply and sewage disposal note. No individual water supply system or sewage disposal
system shall be permitted on any lot unless the system is located, constructed, and equipped in
accordance with the requirements, standards, and recommendations of the State of Alaska
Department of Environmental Conservation, which governs those systems.

(D) Other federal, state, or local requirements. There may be federal, state, and local
requirements governing land use. The individual parcel owner shall obtain a determination whether
these requirements apply to the development of parcels shown on the plat to be recorded.

(E) Restrictive covenants. Covenants, conditions, and restrictions may be submitted with the final
plat for recordation. All reservations or restrictive covenants shall be referenced by the book, page,
or serial number and recording district on the plat in the following form:

Restrictive covenants were recorded in the recording districton ___, 20_, in book __, page ___(or serial number)

(Ord. 16-018, 8 19, 2016; Ord. 15-036, 8 16, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Previiew https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

43.15.053 FINAL PLAT; CERTIFICATES.

(A) Certificates of ownership. Each plat of a subdivision filed for record shall contain a certificate of
ownership. The certificate shall be signed in black ink and acknowledged by all parties having any
legal and equitable interest in the lands subdivided before an officer duly authorized to take
acknowledgements of deeds, in the same manner in which deeds are required to be acknowledged.
If the title interest is vested in a corporation, it shall also be sighed and acknowledged by the
designee of the corporation with the authority of its board of directors. Where any person holding
any mortgage, lien, or other legal or equitable interest in the lands has not signed the certificate of
ownership, the affidavit or title opinion shall be accompanied by the written consent, properly
signed and acknowledged, of the person to the approval of the plat. This subsection does not
require the signatures of holders of subsurface estate interests in the land being subdivided or
dedicated. The ownership and dedication certificate shall be substantially as follows:

(1) (We) certify that (I am) {(we are) the owner(s) of the property shown and described in this plan and that (1) (We) adopt
this plan of subdivision by (my) (our) free consent(,)(.) (dedicate) (all rights-of-way) (and public areas) (to the Matanuska-
Susitna Borough) and (grant all easements to the use shown). (delete inapplicable phrases)

Owner's name and address

Date
(B) Notary's acknowledgments. A notary acknowledgment shall be substantially as follows:

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

This is to certify that on the day of , 20__, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the state
of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared , to me known to be the persons

described in and who executed the above instrument; and who acknowledged to me that they signed the same freely
and voluntarily for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate first above written.

Notary for the state of Alaska

My commission expires:

Or:

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of ,20___, for

Notary for the state of Alaska

My commission expires:

20 of 27 _ 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Previey  surveyors certificate. A surveyor's certificate sh&fPS& B sesRREdisHes oAl rimeSysipaBorough/cgi...
follow, whichever is appropriate:

I, (surveyor's name and land surveyor number), hereby certify that | am a registered professional land surveyor in the
state of Alaska and that this plat represents a survey made by me or under my direct supervision, and that the
monuments shown on the plat actually exist as described, and that all dimensional and other details are true and correct
to the best of my knowledge.

(SEAL)

I, (surveyor's name and land surveyor number), hereby certify that | am a registered professional land surveyor in the
state of Alaska and that this plat was prepared by me or under my direct supervision using record dimensions from Plat
#

(SEAL)

(D) Planning and land use director’s certificate. A certificate of approval for signature by the
planning and land use director shall be substantially in a form as follows:

| certify that this subdivision plan has been found to comply with the land suhbdivision regulations of the Matanuska-
Susitna Borough, and that the plat has been approved by the platting authority by plat resolution number ____, dated
___20_, and that this plat has been approved for recording in the office of the recorder in the district,
Third Judicial District, State of Alaska in which the plat is located.

,20__

Planning and Land Use Director

ATTEST:

Platting Clerk

(E) Certificate to plat. Every final plat of a subdivision submitted for recording shall be
accompanied by a certificate to plat or a preliminary commitment for title insurance, executed no
more than seven days prior to recording, by a title insurance company, confirming that the title of
the land described and shown on the plat is in the name of the person signing the certificate of
ownership as it is shown on the plat, or in the name of the corporation as shown in the certificate of
ownership.

(F) Certificate of payment of taxes. Every final plat of a subdivision submitted for recording shall
be accompanied by a certificate from the tax collecting official or city treasurer stating that all
special assessments and borough real property taxes levied against the property are paid in full. In
the case of real property taxes, if approval is sought between January 1st and the tax due date, the
certificate shall state there are certified funds on deposit with the borough in an amount sufficient
to pay estimated real property taxes for the current year at the time of recording. The certificate
shall be as follows:

CERTIFICATION OF PAYMENT OF TAXES

I hereby certify that all current taxes and special assessments through , 20___, against the property, included
21 of 27 in the subdivision or resubdivision, have been paid. 12/8/2022. 12:14 PM



Print Preview https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

Tax Collection Official (Borough)

[ hereby certify that all current taxes and special assessments through , 20__, against the property, included
in the subdivision or resubdivision, have been paid.

Tax Collection Official (City)

(Ord. 17-033, 88 24, 49, 50, 2017; Ord. 16-018, 88 20, 21, 2016; Ord. 15-036, § 17, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part),
2012)

43.15.054 FINAL PLAT; SURVEYOR REQUIREMENTS.

(A) Qualifications of persons making survey and plat; certification. Any subdivision of land within
the borough shall be surveyed by a land surveyor or by persons under the surveyor’s direct
supervision who shall certify on the subdivision plat that the plat is a true and correct
representation of the lands surveyed. The certification shall bear the signature, registration
number, and the official seal of the surveyor. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent
the preparation of preliminary plats by any person. In all cases, the certification required on the
final plat shall be signed by a land surveyor.

(B) Monuments of record; permanent control monuments. Prior to offering any subdivision plat
for recording, the land surveyor shall establish or confirm the prior establishment of at least two
permanent control monuments on the boundaries of the land being subdivided. Permanent control
monuments shall consist of a magnetized aluminum or brass-capped pipe, 30 inches in length, and
a minimum of two inches in diameter. Drive-in rods and monument caps are allowable when a dig-
in type monument is impractical. The monument shall be marked to identify its location, and shown
and described on the final plat. The monument shall also have stamped on the cap the registration
number of the land surveyor and the year it is set. Other existing monuments such as GLO
monuments, rocks, and trees, which do not meet these specifications, shall be acceptable only if
they can be verified as to location. This requirement shall not apply when the subdivision is a replat
and the boundary has been previously monumented.

(C) Other markers. Additional markers for lot corners may be galvanized iron pipe of no less than
one-half-inch inside diameter, 24 inches in length, or five-eighths-inch by 24-inch steel reinforcing

rod with self-identifying markers that clearly identify marker location, year of setting, and the land

surveyor’s state of Alaska registration number.

(D) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 51, 2017]

(E) Additional markers required. Required additional markers shall be of types prescribed in
subsection (C) of this section, and, whether set prior to or subsequent to the recording of the plat,
shall be set at all of the following locations:

22 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview (1) = 3t every corner and angle point of every lobBiCkVSepireblising sane/idsdefanuskasusitnaBorough/cgi...

(2) atevery point of intersection of the outer boundary of the subdivision with an existing or
created right-of-way line of any street, railroad, or other way; and

(3) atevery point of curve, point of tangency, point of reversed curve, or point of
compounded curve on each and every right-of-way line established.

(F) Destruction of survey monuments. Any person who willfully disturbs or destroys a record
survey monument shall be responsible for its replacement or be guilty of an infraction punishable
by a fine of $250 for each occurrence.

(@) Exemption. A subdivision plat, the sole purpose of which is to eliminate lot lines on a
subdivision plat of record, shall be exempt from the survey and monumentation requirements of
this section.

(Ord. 17-033, §§ 25, 26, 51, 2017; Ord. 15-036, § 18, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.055 FINAL PLAT; DEDICATIONS, IMPROVEMENTS, RECORDING.

(A) Offers to dedicate rights-of-way, roadways, easements, or other public areas to the public on a
final plat are accepted by the appropriate governmental agency upon approval and recordation of
the final plat by the borough in compliance with subsection (C) of this section. Unless otherwise
provided, by accepting an offered dedication, the agency assumes no obligation to establish,
operate, or maintain any public service, improvement, or facilities in the area dedicated.

(B) The platting officer may not approve the final plat and no final plat may be recorded until:

(1) the subdivider completes and obtains the borough's or city's final acceptance of all the
public improvements required in the subdivision; or

(2) the subdivider has entered into a subdivision agreement with the appropriate municipal
government.

(C) Upon the subdivider's compliance with subsection (B) of this section, and also the acceptance
of the dedications offered on the approved final plat, the platting officer shall submit the plat to the
district recorder upon approval of the planning and land use director in accordance with AS 40.15.
The cost of the recording shall be borne by the subdivider.

(Ord. 17-033, 8 27, 2017; Ord. 15-036, 8 19, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.15.065 WAIVER OF STANDARDS FOR RESUBDIVISION OF SUBSTANDARD
LOTS.

23 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Previgy  The standards applicable to the subdivision of IHRFHTSY B RES S ¢ plodHEtusifpaBorough/cgi...

the resubdivision of substandard lots if the following conditions are met:

(1) oneor more lots involved in the resubdivision are substandard lots, as defined in
subsection (B) of this section;

(2) because of separate ownerships, unavailability of sufficient additional land, and similar
reasons, it is not reasonable to require the replat of the lot in a manner that will bring the lot
into conformance with all the requirements applicable to the replat;

(3) one or more of the conditions that make the lot substandard under the present code
would be reduced or eliminated under the proposed replat;

(4) the number of substandard lots after the replat may not be more than before the replat;
except, if one or more conforming lots would be made nonconforming under the proposed
replat, the platting officer may waive the requirement of this paragraph if: -

(@) the number of conforming lots that shall be made nonconforming is the minimum
that could be reasonably included to minimize or eliminate the existing nonconformity;

(b) the new nonconforming conditions do not create a significant violation of the
purposes and policies behind the standard violated;

(5) overall, the benefits to the public from the reduction or elimination of the prohibited
conditions would outweigh the disadvantages of any increase in the number or extent of
prohibited conditions. The creation of a new condition that violates the applicable provisions
of borough code, or expansion of an existing condition, is strongly discouraged and shall be
permitted only for compelling reasons.

(B) For the purpose of this section, a “substandard lot" is a lot that was lawfully created and met all
conditions of the applicable provisions of law and ordinance at the time the plat was approved by
the platting authority, or at the time it was filed if platting authority approval was not required by
state law at the time it was filed, but does not conform to one or more of the applicable standards
of MSB Title 17 or this title.

(Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.070 RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION PLATS.

(A) Alternate procedure. A plat for a subdivision created by a government agency's acquisition of a
road, street, highway, right-of-way, railroad right-of-way, or airport parcel is subject to approval
under this section and is not subject to any other approval procedure for plats under this chapter.

(B) Submission requirements. A government right-of-way acquisition plat submitted under this
24 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Prevg'%\&ion shall contain the following information: https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

25 0f 27

Q)

(1) the location, name, and number of the project for which the acquisition is required;

(2) the proposed timetable for acquisition and construction;

(3) the dimensions and area of the parcels to be acquired and of each remainder parcel; and
(4) the names of the property owners identified by parcel.

Right-of-way acquisition plat. A right-of-way acquisition plat shall conform to the submission

requirements of subsection (B) of this section and to the other provisions of this title; provided,

that:

(D)

(1) aright-of-way acquisition plat is not subject to any of the other submission requirements
for plats under this title;

(2) aright-of-way acquisition is not subject to the Subdivision Construction Manual;

(3) survey requirements of this title are not applicable to a right-of-way acquisition plat
unless otherwise provided by written agreement between the borough and the government
agency applying for the plat; the borough shall require remonumentation or reference
monumentation of subdivision control monuments, aliquot part section corner monuments,
and government survey control monuments that will be disturbed, destroyed, or lost as a
result of the proposed project; and

(4) the state, its agencies, instrumentalities, or political subdivision and the Matanuska-
Susitna Borough may acquire or obtain conveyances, including dedication of lots or tracts of a
right-of-way acquisition plat, before submittal of a right-of-way acquisition plat for approval by
the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. A right-of-way acquisition conveyance may be recorded
before approval and recording of the right-of-way acquisition plat.

Action. Actions necessary prior to approval of a final plat include:

(1) The platting officer and the appropriate government agency shall review the right-of-way
acquisition plat for completeness. If the proposed plat does not meet the requirements of this
section, it shall be returned to the submitting agency with an explanation of the deficiencies.

(2) The platting officer shall make the decisions required by this section unless a government
agency applying for the plat requests a public hearing before the platting board.

(3) The public notice and hearing requirements applicable to plats submitted for approval by
the platting authority apply to right-of-way acquisition plats submitted to the borough for
action. If the submitting agency requests a public hearing before the platting board, or if the

agency appeals the borough decision under subsection (D)(6) of this section, the public notice
12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview  and hearing requirements applicable to other pt4ps4tB R ithiagnaming Maiapaskrintigapyoush/cei...

26 of 27

(4) The preliminary approval of a right-of-way acquisition plat is effective for 120 months. The
platting authority may grant an extension of up to 120 months for recording the final plat
upon the finding that it is in the public interest to do so.

(5) The platting authority, as appropriate, may require as a condition of final plat approval
any action it finds appropriate under the circumstances of the proposed plat or project, insofar
as those actions are consistent with state law, including, but not limited to, the acquisition of
remainder parcels that will not meet the applicable minimum requirements for lot size or
dimensions. The platting authority may also require the realignment or reconstruction of any
abutting or intersecting road or street right-of-way adversely affected by the acquisition or
project.

(6) The decision of the platting officer in this matter is final unless appealed in accordance
with MSB 43.35. An appeal under this subsection is treated as an original subdivision
application.

(7) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the platting officer, all monumentation,
remonumentation, right-of-way alignment, and reconstruction and other requirements of the
borough or of this title shall be met before approval of the final plat unless it is clearly
impractical or legally impossible to accomplish prior to final plat approval. Any action required
as a condition of final plat approval, but not to be accomplished prior to the approval, shall be
completed under the terms and conditions as are set out in writing by the borough. Any survey
markers that control the length or direction of any property line shall be reset Vac'tording to the
new location. Secondary monumentation of all property corners, points of curves and angle
points along the new right-of-way shall be required.

(E) Application. Except to the extent otherwise agreed to in writing by the platting officer, the
provisions of this title other than those specifically excepted under this section shall apply to right-
of-way acquisition plats.

(Ord. 16-018, § 22, 2016; Ord. 15-036, § 20, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.15.075 VARIANCE; STANDARDS FOR APPROVAL.

(A) Avariance from the requirements of MSB 43.20 may be granted only if the platting board finds
all of the following:

(1) the granting of the variance shall not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or
welfare, or injurious to adjacent property;

(2) the variance request is based upon conditions of the property that are atypical to other

properties; 12/8/2022,12:14 PM



PrintPreview (3)  Because of unusual physical surroundings RS PESreIpaBH AR HurpRinaBorough/ogi...
property for which the variance is sought, or because of the taking of a part of the property

through condemnation or because of surrounding development or conditions, the strict
application of MSB 43.20 shall result in undue substantial hardship to the owner of the
property; and

(4) Only one variance fee shall be charged per platting action when multiple variances are
requested.

(Ord. 17-033, § 28, 2017: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

27 of 27 12/8/2022, 12:14 PM



Print Preview https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

CHAPTER 43.20: SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Section

43.20.020 Standards; general

43.20.040 Development standards districts
43.20.055 Rural and remote access [Repealed]
43.20.060 Dedication to public

43.20.100 Access required

43.20.120 Legal access

43.20.130 Major road corridors

43.20.140 Physical access

43.20.280 Area [Repealed]

43.20.281 Area

43.20.300 Lot and block design

43.20.320 Frontage

43.20.340 Lot dimensions

43.20.020 STANDARDS; GENERAL.

(A) This chapter establishes general design standards for subdivision development which, except
as provided otherwise, govern all subdivisions in the borough.

(B) Construction of improvements within subdivision shall also comply with official construction
standards for public improvements under the Subdivision Construction Manual.

(Ord. 17-033, 8 52, 2017: Ord. 11-072, 8 3 (part), 2012)

43.20.040 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS DISTRICTS.

(A) Itis the purpose of this section to provide a means of establishing different development
requirements for the subdivision of land in recognition of the diverse conditions in the borough,
ranging from highly urbanized to undeveloped, remote areas without conventional road access; to
provide a means of establishing different development requirements in identified areas that are
tailored more to the needs of the areas; and to provide a means in individual cases of reducing
certain requirements in remote areas where the requirements are inconsistent with the public
need for access, subdivision improvements, and other platting requirements.

(B) Cities to which the assembly has delegated by ordinance the authority to administer specific

design and construction standards shall administer the standards pursuant to the delegation.
10f16 12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Previey  The assembly, by ordinance, may establish one BPHErEHRadersplising i MriagrskatysiprBorough/ogi...

which there are subdivision development standards in addition to, or different from, those
specified in this chapter. The ordinance may be adopted only after the planning commission has
considered the ordinance and made its recommendation to the assembly, and after a public
hearing on the ordinance before the assembly, notice of which shall be given as provided in MSB
43.10.065.

(Ord. 15-036, § 21, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.20.055 Rural and Remote Access. [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 29, 2017]

43.20.060 DEDICATION TO PUBLIC.

(A) All roads shall be dedicated to the public, except as provided in MSB 43.20.100(C); provided,
that a subdivider shall be required only to provide the designated right-of-way width within the
subdivision, and one-half of the designated right-of-way width of the street on the exterior
boundary of the subdivision with the dedication secured from the adjacent property owner before
final plat approval.

(B) When accepting roadway dedication, the platting authority shall conduct a public hearing.

(C) Roads shall be dedicated for access to all lots within the subdivision and parcels of land
adjacent to the subdivision except that access to adjoining lands does not have to be provided
where legal and constructible alternative access is available. Dedications shall be a minimum of 60
feet wide and sufficient to carry all traffic generated by the subdivision and to provide residential
rights-of-way for projected traffic through the subdivision. Sixty-foot radius rights-of-way shall be
dedicated at temporary and permanent cul-de-sacs.

(D) Subdivisions shall provide through connecting rights-of-way of residential collector standard
minimum (as defined in the MSB Subdivision Construction Manual) to all adjoining stub rights-of-
way and unsubdivided parcels, where feasible, to improve interconnectivity and/or public safety. If
it is shown by the applicant to be unnecessary for future development and/or public safety, then a
reduction to a lesser road right-of-way standard or an elimination of the requirement to provide
access shall be applied to all of (or a portion of) the right-of-way that is being considered for a
reduced standard.

(E) The platting board may require the dedication or improvement, or dedication and
improvement, of rights-of-way, tracts, or easements no narrower than ten feet in width to
accommodate the construction of walkways up to eight feet in width in any of the following
circumstances:

(1) if awalkway is indicated as appropriate in the borough’s comprehensive plan or other
20f16 12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Preview  5rdinanc e, i.e., special land use district (SPUD); https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

(2) if the walkway is reasonably necessary to provide safe and efficient pedestrian access to a
school, playground, park, shopping center, public cemetery, transportation, or other
community facility; or

(3) ifthe walkway is reasonably necessary to provide connectivity to a dedicated right-of-way
in an adjoining subdivided or unsubdivided parcel.

(4) The above requirements for dedication of additional right-of-way for a walkway shall
apply only where a walkway cannot be contained within the legal right-of-way reserved for a
street.

(a) Plats or master plans of 20 lots or less shall be exempt from requirements to
construct a walkway, unless evidence is presented supporting the need for pedestrian
safety or the walkway will provide connectivity to other pedestrian facilities.

(Ord. 17-033, § 53, 2017: Ord. 16-018, § 24, 2016; Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.20.100 ACCESS REQUIRED.

(A) There shall be legal and physical road access provided to all subdivisions and to all lots within
subdivisions, except as allowed by subsection (B) of this section and any other exemption within
this title.

(B) Upon finding that no practical means of providing road access to a proposed subdivision exists
and upon a showing that permanent public access by air, water, or railroad is both practical and
feasible, the platting board shall waive the road requirements of subsection (A) of this section. If
other than road access is approved, the mode of access shall be noted on the plat.

(O) Gated subdivisions and private roads shall be approved, provided they meet the following
criteria:

(1) Internal roads conform to the requirements of the Subdivision Construction Manual for
residential standards minimum except as allowed in this section;

(2) Emergency services shall be provided access to deliver services within the private
subdivision;

(3) There is no possibility or public necessity to provide for public through traffic because
alternate legal access to adjoining properties is available and that access is constructible in
accordance with Subdivision Construction Manual standards;

(4) Private road maintenance is guaranteed.
30f 16 12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Preview (a) The applicant shall submit a document& @SS eEadrRybHdinstrowmiAg/ MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...
() what seasons road maintenance will be performed,
(ii) contact information for road maintenance,
(iii) length of the maintained roads in feet, and
(iv) surface type;

(5) Existing lots created within subdivisions recorded with platted private roads may be
subdivided using the private roads as the legal and physical access.

(D) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 30, 2017]

(E) A subdivision plat whose sole purpose is to separate/divide a home/headquarters site in a
Matanuska-Susitna Borough agricultural rights parcel under former MSB Title 13 is exempt from
the road construction standards of the MSB Subdivision Construction Manual; provided, that the
following conditions are fulfilled:

(1) prior to preliminary plat submittal the agriculture rights property owner is to obtain
assembly approval of the sale of the home/headquarters site through an application made to
the borough land and resource management division;

(2) the maximum parcel size is five acres for the home/headquarters site;

(3) only two parcels can be created from the farm unit parcel, the home/headquarters site
and the remainder;

(4) the applicant demonstrates that legal access as defined in MSB 43.20.120, Legal Access,
exists to all parcels or tracts created, and the suitability of the legal access for future
residential road construction is documented by a land surveyor or civil engineer hired by the
applicant;

(5) the property is to be surveyed and monumented and a plat submitted in conformance
with MSB 43.15.016, Preliminary plat submittal and approval, 43.15.049, Final plat; general
provisions, and 43.15.051, Final plat; submitted;

(6) a plat note declaring that the borough is not responsible for road construction or road
maintenance; and

(7) aplat note restricting further subdivision of the parcels being created.

(F) Rural and remote access. The provisions of this subsection provide a different set of access
and road construction standards for rural and remote subdivisions:

40f 16 12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



PrintPreview (1) |f the subject property is outside of a road Bdpyicevareadqaplishinesan s & MerauskatppmaBorough/cgi...

50f 16

required and pioneer standard road construction is allowed for physical access.

(a) For subdivisions greater than ten lots, a parking area of sufficient size shall be
reserved and constructed if no provisions are made for winter maintenance of the
subdivision roads.

(b) For a plat of four lots or less outside of a road service area, legal access shall be
provided to all lots and construction of a road is not required; provided, that:

(i) anote shall be placed on the plat to state that if any of the lots or parcels are
further subdivided which would create more than the original lots created, a road
must be constructed to minimum pioneer standards to provide physical access to the
lots being further subdivided.

(2) For a plat or waiver of four lots or less within a road service area, legal access must be
provided to all lots and physical access to the lots may be by a pioneer standard road;
provided, that:

(a) Anote shall be placed on the plat to state that if any of the lots or parcels are further
subdivided which would create more than the original lots created, a road must be
constructed to minimum residential standards to provide physical access to the lots being
further subdivided.

(b) This provision of code will not require the petitioner to upgrade any road prior to the
subject parcel that is or has been maintained by the state or an incorporated municipality.

(G) Remote subdivision access for parcels outside of a road service area. The purpose of this
subsection is to allow for recreational use and subdivision of lands outside of road service areas
where road access to a proposed remote subdivision is not practicable given the size of the
subdivision, the cost of subdividing, assessed value of the property, and the cost of providing
access due to the location, topographical constraints, and terrain, and it is not the desire of the
subdivider to have road access, and proposed access is via trails, creeks, rivers, or lakes by
snowmobile, on foot, skis, dog team, off-road vehicle, boat, railroad, or airplane. The following legal
and physical access requirements apply:

(1) Legal access shall be provided for internal roads or trails to all parcels, and internal rights-
of-way shall be a minimum of 60 feet wide. Legal access can be provided for by plat or by a
recorded public use easement document, or other public access easement such as a section
line easement.

(2) External legal access to a remote subdivision can be provided by any of the following and
shall be a minimum of 100 feet wide for terrestrial access to accommodate reroutes of trails

within the right-of-way or easement, excepting that for subdivisions of ten lots or less may be
12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Preview PR https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...
50 feet wide:

6 of 16

(a) anavigable waterway;
(b) afloat plane accessible lake;

(c) an airstrip as approved by applicable agencies including FAA, DOT, or other agencies;
where an airstrip is used, a plat note shall be added that no maintenance or upgrades will
be provided by the borough; or

(d) railroad.

(3) Private property rights. Access routes shall not trespass upon private lands, and shall
avoid conflicts with adjoining and nearby private properties.

(4) Sufficient land area shall be dedicated for parking at the permanent public access point
unless the applicant demonstrates that it is unnecessary to serve the proposed subdivision.
Physical improvement shall be made to a required parking area to handle the average number
of vehicles using the area at one time, to include clearing and grubbing, a base constructed of
suitable soils, and grading and drainage improvements as necessary.

(5) Physical access.

(a) Internal access roads or trails shall be constructible. Internal and external physical
trail access shall meet the following minimum standards:

(i) a minimum of ten feet wide;
(i) avoid wetlands where possible;
(iiiy be cleared and grubbed;

(iv) have hardened surface with a minimum of one-foot-thick gravel base or use
existing soils where suitable as determined by an engineer;

(v) be shaped to drain;

(vi) provide drainage improvements such as culverts for water crossings and make
grading improvements to avoid ponding in low areas:

(@a) when transiting across unavoidable natural features where improvements

will be continually inundated by natural forces, a subdivider will not be required

as a condition of plat approval to provide improvements that cannot be

permanent due to natural circumstances. However, a subdivider must

demonstrate why such areas are unavoidable, given the size of the subdivision,

the expected disruption to access, and the cost of avoiding such disruptiolriyg/zozl 12:15 PM



Print Preview

Except that disruption which is exgetdaMFor ek b iding so e o MatauskesineBamueh/ogi...

unusable for any significant part of a season will not be allowed:;

(bb) where trails encounter large water crossings such as creeks and rivers and
it is not feasible to install culverts or construct a bridge, an open water crossing

(H)

will be allowed; provided, that it is approved by the agencies having jurisdiction
over the waterway and stream bank stabilization improvements are installed
where needed;

(vii) for transit across wetland or marshy conditions, installation of approved matting

shall be allowed to be substituted for a hardened surface as specified above.

(6) All subdivisions under this section shall have a plat note which reads:

The borough is not responsible for maintenance or upgrades of any access improvements to parcels created under this
provision. '

DNR remote recreational projects. The purpose of this section is to specify the legal and

physical access requirements for parcels created under the Alaska Department of Natural
Resources (DNR) Remote Recreational Land Disposal Program(s) and only these standards shall
apply. This program typically consists of large staking area of state land where selected entrants

stake their own parcel within the staking area which is subsequently surveyed and conveyed to the

entrants by the state.

70f 16

(1) Preliminary plat approval. The DNR shall submit a preliminary plat application to the
platting officer for review and approval by the platting board containing the following:

(a) boundary of the proposed staking area;

(b) proposed external winter and/or summer access, vehicle parking, and staging areas

to the staking area;

() the maximum number of proposed parcels; and

(d) identify a proposed main trail or means of access through the staking area from the

access point or points.

(i) If atrail is the main access within the staking area, it shall be within a 60-foot-wide

right-of-way.

(2) Final plat submittal and approval.

(a) The final plat for this section shall conform with provisions of MSB 43.15.051 through

43.15.055.

(b) The final location of the main trail or access through the staking area may be

12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Preview adjusted by the petitioner from the locatioM oW BredsRBlgirgisegpy biifatanuskaSusitmaBorough/cgi...

() Aplatnote shall be added stating the borough is not responsible for maintenance or
upgrades of any access improvements to parcels created under this provision.

(1) Replatting remote recreational parcels. The provisions of this section shall apply to the
subdivision of parcels created under DNR land disposal programs including Remote Parcel, Open to
Entry (AS 38.05.077), Homesteads (AS 38.09) and Remote Recreational land programs.

(1) Said parcels may be subdivided into not more than three lots with each having a
minimum lot size of two and one-half acres.

(2) Lots created herein are exempt from other legal and physical access provisions contained
within this code.

(3) Inlieu of a usable area report, a note shall be placed on the plat that wastewater disposal
systems shall comply with ADEC regulations.

(Ord. 17-033, § 30, 2017: Ord. 16-018, § 25, 2016; amended during 4/15 supplement; Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
43.20.120 LEGAL ACCESS.

(A) The applicant shall provide the platting division a right-of-way document verifying the
existence of legal access. In this title, legal access exists only if one of the following is met:

(1) Anunrestricted, public right-of-way connects the subdivision to a constructed public
transportation system and one of the following is met:

(a) The applicant’s land surveyor submits to the platting division for review and approval
documentation and an opinion demonstrating that the right-of-way exists; or

(b) The applicant provides copies of borough-accepted recorded conveyances creating
the public easement or right-of-way where the access is located, or that access or right-of-
way is maintained by the state of Alaska or an incorporated municipality; or

(c) The applicant provides documentation satisfactory to the borough demonstrating the
legal access is guaranteed through judicial decree;

(2) The right-of-way is an easement or fee interest at least 50 feet in width dedicated or
irrevocably conveyed to the public; or

(B) The applicant proves that the proposed access can be constructed practically and economically
within the legal access documented.

(Ord. 17-033, § 31, 2017: Ord. 15-036, § 23, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)
8of 16 12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



43.20.130 MAJOR ROAD CORRIDORS.

Print Prewliew https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

9of16

(A) Subdivisions of any lots abutting or within 100 feet of a national, state, or borough road
classified as a highway or arterial road in the MSB Long Range Transportation Plan or its future
updates are subject to the provisions of this section.

(B) The distance between direct accessways onto national, state, or borough roads classified as
highways or arterial roads shall be maximized and shall be 650 feet or greater when measured at
centerline unless preexisting conditions and preexisting nonconforming lots do not allow. Access
shall be by collector street, frontage road, or shared driveways, where feasible. A property adjacent
to a road described in subsection (A) of this section shall not be denied access where an existing
road or driveway causes an access to have less than 650 feet of separation.

(Q) Variances may be granted in the interest of public safety and in those cases where preexisting
legal nonconforming lots of record cannot comply with the standard after good faith negotiation
with adjacent property owners has failed to provide a shared access that would conform to the
standards of this chapter. Variances will maintain the greatest possible distance between access
points. Variances may be granted to allow shared access to multiple contiguous pre-existing legal
nonconforming lots subject to the same criteria listed for individual lots.

(Ord. 17-033, § 32, 2017)

43.20.140 PHYSICAL ACCESS.

(A) Roads used for access and internal circulation shall:
(1) conform to the existing requirements of the Subdivision Construction Manual; and
(2) be located entirely within dedicated or legal rights-of-way; and

(a) Prior to recordation, a surveyor's sealed drawing shall be submitted showing traveled
ways within existing or proposed rights-of-way and any slopes steeper than 2.5 to 1 that
extend beyond the right-of-way limits.

(b) A centerline profile shall be provided for those sections of streets exceeding 6
percent grade.

(Ord. 17-033, § 54, 2017: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.20.280 Area. [Repealed by Ord. 15-036, § 24, 2015]

12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



1
|

43.20.281 AREA.

Print Pre‘iiew https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

100f16

(A) Unless designated otherwise by another authority having jurisdiction, minimum lot sizes shall
be as follows:

(1) Except as allowed under subsections (A)(2), (3), and (4) of this section, all lots within this
district shall contain at least 40,000 square feet of area with at least 10,000 square feet of
usable building area and 10,000 square feet of contiguous usable septic area. Lots having
20,000 square feet or less of the total of usable building area and usable septic area shall have
10,000 square feet of contiguous usable septic area surrounded by a well exclusion area
extending 100 feet from the perimeter, delineated and reserved on the plat at the discretion of
the platting board.

(a) Usable septic area is that area where seasonal high water table is a minimum of eight
feet below the surface. Where water is encountered at ten feet or less below the surface,
the seasonal high subsurface water is to be determined between May 1st and October
30th, and:

() thatarea where slopes are less than 25 percent;

(i) that area which is more than 100 feet from open water, surface waters, and
wetlands;

(iii) that area which is located at least 50 feet from the top of a slope which is greater
than 25 percent and has more than ten feet of elevation change;

(iv) that area which is not within an area dedicated to public use;

(v) that area which is outside of utility or other easements that would affect the use
of the areas for on-site septic installation;

(vi) that area which is outside of a protective well radius;
(vii) that area which is outside of any known debris burial site; and
(viii) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 55, 2017]

(b) Water table and ability of soils to accept effluent shall be determined by a number of
borings or test holes sufficient to indicate subsurface conditions over the entire area of
the subdivision. All of the borings and test holes shall be located within the perimeter of
the proposed subdivision. Borings and test holes must have the following minimum
depths below the ground surface:

(i) inareas known or suspected to contain permafrost, the lesser of:
12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Preview

11 of16

(©

(d)

(aa) twenty feet deep; or https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

(bb) a depth at which permafrost or an impermeable layer is encountered; and
(iiy the least depth associated with the following conditions, where they apply:

(aa) two feet below the depth where the water table is encountered;

(bb) twelve feet deep for shallow trench or bed systems;

(cc) sixteen feet deep for areas where deep trench or seepage pits will likely be
used;

(dd) the depth to bedrock, clay, or other impermeable strata with an expected
percolation rate slower than 120 minutes per inch; or

(ee) Asdetermined by the engineer, a lesser depth as required to verify usable
areas is acceptable for hand-dug excavations on parcels with limited or no access
for heavy equipment.

The minimum number of test holes shall be determined by the engineer.

When the water table is encountered in the test holes, the depth to the seasonal high

water table must be determined by:

(e)

(f

(i) monitoring test holes or soil borings at times between May and October
(inclusive);

(i) soil mottling or staining analyses;

(ili) interpretation of levels of standing open water;

(iv) local knowledge and experience, if approved by the borough; or

(v) acombination of these methods.

The depth to any seeps must be noted and may require subsequent monitoring.
Soils in a usable wastewater disposal area must be:

(i) clearly shown to be visually classified as GW, GP, SW, or SP under the Unified Soils
Classification System and expected to have a percolation rate of 15 minutes per inch
or less (faster);

(i) clearly shown to be GM or SM under the Unified Soils Classification System by a
sieve analysis; or
12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Preview

12 0f16

(iiiy shown by a percolation test cond(ePad Y Fedrehtishing P B pamskas stifyaBorough/cgi...

Department of Environmental Conservation regulations to have a percolation rate of
60 minutes per inch or less (faster).

(g8) These borings or test holes shall be accomplished under the direct supervision of a
state of Alaska registered civil engineer, who shall submit soil logs and other findings in
writing to the Matanuska-Susitna Borough certifying 10,000 square feet of contiguous
usable area for septic drain field use.

(h) Where lots, tracts, or parcels exceed five acres in size, the platting authority may
accept a reduced number of test holes or other supporting information, accomplished
under the direct supervision of a state of Alaska registered engineer.

(i) The platting authority shall exempt the submission requirements of MSB
43.15.016(A)(6) for purposes of fulfilling usable area requirements for subdivisions of land
where:

(i) the lotsize is 400,000 square feet or greater and an engineer or land surveyor
submits a detailed topographic narrative; or

(i) the existing subdivision was previously approved by the Alaska State Department
of Environmental Conservation or by the Borough after July 1, 1996, and the proposed
subdivision action is limited to moving one or more lot lines, provided the aggregate
square footage affected is 2,000 square feet or less.

(2) Lots containing at least 20,000 square feet but less than 40,000 square feet must be
serviced by an approved municipal or community water or municipal or community septic
system. The platting authority may approve lots having at least 20,000 square feet, provided
each lot is serviced by an approved municipal or community water system or municipal or
community wastewater system. A community wastewater disposal system shall include a
common wastewater disposal site on separate lot(s) that serves the entire subdivision.

(a) Lots containing at least 20,000 square feet but less than 40,000 square feet not
served by an approved municipal or community septic system must have a minimum
10,000 square feet of usable septic area and are exempt from the usable building area
requirement.

(3) The platting authority may approve lots having less than 20,000 square feet but at least
7,200 square feet if served by a community or municipal water system and community or
municipal sewage disposal facilities.

(4) For those areas not served by municipal sewer and water, lots less than 20,000 square
feet must be approved by a planned unit development as authorized by MSB 17.36.

12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Previgy'  within jurisdictions having authority, minimum ¥ps{28esriaihie rvh S NaeeS usitnaBorough/cgi...

130f 16

established under or pursuant to the applicable provisions of MSB Title 17; however, where a size
or dimension has not been established under or pursuant to MSB Title 17, the applicable provision
of this title applies.

(C) If a condemnation by a governmental agency reduces the area of a lot below the minimum
required by this section, the area after condemnation shall be the minimum area required for that
lot if that lot met the minimum requirements before the condemnation and the resulting area after
the condemnation is not less than 80 percent of the minimum required.

(D) Exclusive of open space, lots designated or dedicated for a public or utility purpose with no on-
lot sewer shall have no minimum lot size but shall have restrictions, requirements, designations, or
dedications noted on the plat.

(E) Open space incentive. The intent of this subsection is to support the goals, policies, and
objectives of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Plan.

(1)  Minimum individual lot area may be reduced up to 25 percent by the dedication of an
equal area of usable open space within the subdivision; provided, that:

(a) Each non-open space lot, in which the lot area was reduced, has 10,000 square feet of
contiguous usable septic area delineated on the plat, unless served by a municipal or
community wastewater system;

(b) The open space area is connected by public access, or is attached to an existing open
space or greenbelt area that has public access. If it is proposed to attach to an existing
open space or greenbelt area, the access must be in an area that is feasible for the
intended use; and

(c) Open space shall be irrevocably dedicated to the municipality or borough, or
irrevocably dedicated to the subdivision owners and cannot be resubdivided.

(2) Additional nonusable area may be attached to the usable open space area, but shall not
be used for calculations in the reduction of lot size.

(3) Open space area is exempt from lot configuration; however, the minimum width of any
open space area shall be a minimum of 20 feet.

(4) Usable open space area shall be a minimum of 30,000 contiguous square feet.

(a) Usable open space area has a seasonal high groundwater table no closer than two
feet below the surface, and is outside of existing or proposed utility, slope, or public use
easements and does not include any other existing or proposed easements that would
normally disturb the natural vegetative state.

12/8/2022,12:15 PM

i
i
i



Print Preview (5)  The proposed open space area shall connd¥théd/ Sycarrpaplshinpern/ Akeiepan iiepiiprougtvegi...

14 of 16

and feasible.
(6) Open space area shall be delineated and identified on the plat.

(7) Community wells and community septic systems shall not be allowed on open space
dedicated to a municipality or the borough but are allowed in open space areas if accepted by
the subdivision owners. Protective well radii may be allowed in open space areas.

(Ord. 17-033, 8 55, 2017; Ord. 16-018, 88 26, 27, 2016; Ord. 15-036, & 25, 2015)

43.20.300 LOT AND BLOCK DESIGN.

(A) The length of a block shall be not less than 400 feet, no more than 3,000 feet, or less than 800
feet along collector or arterial roads.

(B) Nolot under 2 acres in size shall have an average depth of more than 3 times the average
width, except:

(1) Lots of 40,000 square feet minimum shall have an average width of at least 125 feet when
they exceed the 3-to-1 ratio due to unusable area or natural ground slope exceeding 25
percent;

(2) Lots of 20,000 square feet minimum shall have an average width at least 85 feet when
they exceed the 3-to-1 ratio due to unusable area or natural ground slope exceeding 25
percent grade.

(C) Lots 2 acres to 10 acres may have an average depth of no more than 4 times its average width.

(1) Lots 2 to 10 acres shall have an average width of at least 125 feet when they exceed the
4-to-1 ratio due to unusable area or natural ground slope exceeding 25 percent.

(D) [Repealed by Ord. 17-033, § 34, 2017]
(E) Flag lots.

(1) Flag lots are defined in MSB 43.05.005 and further defined as having a pole portion which
is 100 feet wide or less.

(2) The pole portion of flag lots shall:
(a) not be included in the usable area calculations;

(b) notbe included in the depth-to-width ratio;

12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



Print Preview (©) not exceed a length of 2,640 feet. https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi...

150f16

(3) Utility easements and utilities shall be located outside of the length of the flag pole
portion of the lot:

(a) excepting where the flag pole is greater than 75 feet wide to accommodate utilities.

(4) When served by road access, multiple flag lots within the proposed subdivision with pole
portions adjoining shall:

(a) share a common access point to the road at the road right-of-way line;

(b) be overlaid with a public use easement over the width of the pole portion and extend
into the flag portion an adequate distance to provide for a turnaround designed to
Subdivision Construction Manual standards;

(i) applies to lots greater than 2.5 acres;

(c) beserved by a public use easement created to provide sufficient access to subject
parcels when a common access point is a requirement for subdividing.

(5) For flag lots containing 2.5 acres or less, the minimum pole portion width is:
(a) 30 feet where 2 or more pole portions are adjoining;
(b) 40 feet for a single pole portion;
(i) 45 feet of frontage if access is onto a cul-de-sac.
(6) For lots greater than 2.5 acres, the minimum pole portion width is:
(a) 30 feet where 2 or more pole portions are adjoining;
(i) 45 feet of frontage if access is onto a cul-de-sac;
(b) 60 feet for a single pole portion.

(7) Flag lots are limited to 10 percent of the total number of lots for any subdivision of 60 or
more lots, up to a maximum of 10 flag lots, and no more than 6 lots for a subdivision of less
than 60 lots. The calculated amount shall be rounded to the greater number in case of a
fraction of 0.5 or greater, and rounded to the lesser number in case of a fraction of less than
0.5.

(Ord. 17-033, 88 33 - 35, 2017; Ord. 16-018, § 28, 2016: Ord. 15-036, § 26, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

12/8/2022, 12:15 PM

1



Print Pre»iiew https://www.codepublishing.com/AK/MatanuskaSusitnaBorough/cgi... |

16 of 16

43.20.320 FRONTAGE.

(A) Exclusive of flag lots, lots shall contain a minimum of 60 feet of frontage, unless located on a
cul-de-sac, in which case the minimum frontage may be 45 feet.

(B) Frontage for flag lots is pursuant to MSB 43.20.300(E).

(Ord. 17-033, § 36, 2017: Ord. 15-036, § 27, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

43.20.340 LOT DIMENSIONS.

(A) Lots adjacent to a watercourse or body of water shall be a minimum of 125 feet in width at the
waterline, as measured directly between property corners at the waterline, or a minimum of 85 feet
in width if community sewerage is provided to the lot.

(1) For flag lots where water is the only legal access, water body frontage is pursuant to MSB
43.20.300(E).

(Ord. 17-033, 8 39, 2017: Ord. 15-036, § 28, 2015: Ord. 11-072, § 3 (part), 2012)

12/8/2022, 12:15 PM



CITY OF PALMER
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
INFORMATION MEMORANDUM 23-001

SUBJECT: Abbreviated Plat Request for Comments: Simplex, Lot 1 & Tax Parcel B35
in Section 33, Township 18 North, Range 2 East

AGENDA OF: January 19, 2023

ACTION: Review and comment

Attachment(s): 1) Staff Comments
2) Abbreviated/Preliminary Plat package from MSB Platting Division

Summary: The request is to create one lot from Lot 1, Simplex, Plat No. 85-182
and Tax Parcel B35 in Section 33, Township 18 North, Range 2 East, to
be known as Beaver subdivision, located inside Palmer city limits.

Recommendation: The staff comments regarding the abbreviated plat packet are attached.

Page 1 of 1 P & ZIM 23-001



MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH

* PLATTING DIVISION -
350 EAST DAHLIA AVENUE, PALMER, ALASKA 99645-6488
PHONE 861-7874 = FAX 861-8407

Comments Due: January 12, 2023 December 22, 2022
Abbreviated Plat Request for Comments

AK Dept. of Transportation — Anchorage MSB — Emergency Services

AK Dept. of Transportation — Aviation MSB — Community Development

AK DNR, Division of Mining/Land/Water MSB — Public Works, Engineering

AK DNR, Public Access Defense MSB - Public Works, Pre-Design Division

AK DNR, Division of Agriculture MSB — Assessments

ADF&G, Habitat Mgmt. & Permitting MSB — Planning Division

ADF&G, Division of Sport Fish MSB — Development Services Division

AKX Railroad, Engineeting Department MSB — Borough Attorney

U.S. Army Corp of Engineers MEA

U.S. Postmaster MTA

City of: Palmer Enstar

Community Council: GClI

Fire Service Area: Assembly District #2 Stephanie Nowers

Road Service Area: )

Title; BEAVER

Location: SEC 33, T18N, RO2E, S.M, AK

Petitioner; WADE STAHLE & TARRAH WUESTENBERG PO BOX 1356 PALMER AK 99645

Surveyor: SOUTHWEST ALASKA SURVEYING LLC 2800 N. PARK DRIVE WASILLA 99654

The request is to create one lot from Lot 2, Simplex, Plat No. 85-182 and Tax Parcel B33, to be known as
BEAVER, containing 1.35 acres +/-. The parcel is located north of E. Arctic Avenue, east of N. Valley way
and north of E. Beaver Avenue, within the city limits of City of Palmer; (Tax IDs # 18N02E33B005 and
3148000L.002) within Section 33, Township 18 North, Range 02 East, Seward Meridian, Alaska.

Please submit your comments in writing, specifying any easements or other requirements that your department
or agency may need or any data which you feel should be incorporated on the abbreviated plat to help us more
effectively enforce our subdivision regulations. All comments, existing files and correspondence that you may
have relating to this case must be submitted to the Platting Division by January 12, 2023 so that we may
incorporate this information into our recommendations to the Platting Officer, for the public hearing to be held
on January 18, 2023.

Sincerely,

Amy Otto-Buchanan

Platting Technician
907-861-7872 DEC 22 202

amy.otto-buchanan@matsugov.us

Received

Providing Outstanding Borough Services to the Matanuska-Susitna Community.

Case # 2022-178 Tax [D: 118NO2E33B005/53148000L002 Tax Map #: PA 05 Pre-App Date: 09/16/2022



7A (3535)/ []a 4 KLINE 45_14(5 34 2 |1
5 |+ E?SA;,,\ TR A (2)
9 _SUBJECT/ /& 5 | @3] 1
10 PROPERTY/31AYN 1S
1 “ (5010) 7 2B 2
S <ZE g &
g [ s N2 |, |B34 =N
.|
, > f = X | Z10 | 4
4 S /7 CARIN - {5009
15 " MEIER %8__1
= B~ 6
< 4-1 n
> t ~>
3211 2 (5016) =
4-2 o ~
- E BEAVER AVE n
/ BBA%O TRT TR TIR] 7R | TR | SMITH EXT |<
= teqi4p 5] 4 | 5 | YRK ADD |Z
28pB27) 2 |avkiEr | B22|B21 |B B19 1 =
5618} (73154) ( 5053 ) (ZD
E AUKLET AVE 5 BB7'_B6B 5
I PALMER B15 TR A B 2B1 1L ROSE
oGk | [HeRmAY 51198 o4
OO0 | CHURCH
(6758) | |(2723) (15@5)
E ARCTIC AVE |
SNODGRABS+
(7058)
1A NEW%OMB‘SSZ 9 D26
VICINITY MAP
FOR PROPOSED BEAVER SUBDIVISION
LOCATED WITHIN D24 i
SECTION 33, T17N, RO2E, SEWARD MERIDIAN,
ALASKA DEC 22 202
PALMER 05 MAP .




N I

sl O ug uoan

[ | 220 K
756 % 709 T 206 ore
veaee ny VISR
IR0 ve W coge
RSN NOLVZRORLAY 40 YOI oo
OTT ONWIANNS ¥ISYTY ISIMHINCS |02 woNIS okiioR
a0 oz i3S o ve
TORILSID SNIGUOO3N TN VA
'SST) M0 FN SOV SEL ONINVINGD

¥ WS 3¢y ‘NEi 6 OIS ®/1WNR/ T3S NIKLK Q31V00T

ONINNIOS 40 INIDD 31 0L 1334 391 40

z«m 'HLEON 8

NYIGRIN GUYATS, V3 7 3

3 AV LIDINY

[ T

| g !

| | E§ |

i | E1-S
i o

T IOEE !

{ 1197000 €T30 WL L ion 2

| £1°8102 ON 1YTd 2
“agns LAMiNY =

|

|

|

|

5107 INYOVA UV LDWISIO ONICHI03 NINTYA 3HL 20 0-9AIFZO-TZOT
330 AINVIRIVA ALITHUO3 20 - TIYA ONV NOISWIGENS XTIIAS IO 2 101 ¢
VIV INENIN HOANY MINTYA 30 ALD L LW SI NOISNGENS N3AYIE 'O
LORISIO TGO HINVE
IHL N O-POI8Z0-2E02 INNTO0G NI CACHO03Y SV 0330 AINTAYM SNLOHNOD 13
NI3L38 SINN NOISAID L AUV OL S Lvid SIHE 0 INAINI 3HL S
ROZHIH MAOHS STIUYG 0 LNINACIINI] 34 O
ATedy SININGMDIN SONS 3MIZH KOUYNIEILIT v NYIEO OL

WD TV TYPOWONT 5HL 20 ALFIBISNOSIN ML S 11 ‘38N ONVY
ONINAIAGS SININGHINO3N T¥D01 NV UVIS Va3odi 38 AVR ML ¥

‘SIONVISID VIS WINCZION 01 3303 3bY
HOOMS SIONVISG SHL ONY ONYIR 0 SISYS 2W1I O1

QUNID SV SONIEYIR N1 i NMOLS SONKVIE TIY §
00051 033003

LON 300 ATMNS SIHL 40 34NSOT 40 OMN3 L 7
M35 ORY NIAYR MINIVA 40 LI ML A8 TINNES S

HOBWIBNS Sil "10T ANV KO G3LIMUIY 39 TIV1S NILSAS
WSDSSI) FOVAIS 2O MALSAS AT4SNS HATA WAGWIGKI ON ‘1

FIAON

€5 NOWO3S. (»// VANK/135) HI:UYND-INO LSIAHLAON
3HL 40 ¥ALNVNO-INO LISYIHLNOS 3HL 40 NOLUCE LVHL I - R \_
‘GNYT 30 T30¥Vd ONMOTIOS 3HL WOHJ3¥3HL ONWLJ30X3 N
oo o WS I ! I 7|
S N LOVaL S10vHL 9.10vHL HSMiz YD JUSN
vl T I ’ I | o et sl B it
L 2o _W\MAJ«, | | £0e-2 PN 1vid NOISNLX3 HLIWS ONV ﬂc |
€6 NOUD3S 40 SALNTO 341 SNIBE YINNIO QIVS LE-S—r/ 10, o N 2 e \_/ i | i zo_:ao<zmmzw>w_¢xu ¢ o
nmxk<$ FZui_.,ZD} NOYI A3AMNS SN 3HL WOMA m -~ L ——- i, ey i e O e
35
v T T T T T T s sm.: e s e
GuViRIS iS¥3 2 ZONVA HLUON §i dIMSNWOL ‘T8 BGov izm T =7 it 3
40 (v/IMNP/135) MDAV -3NO ISIMHLEON 3HL 40 EE<€ g T Ny - \
~3N0 ISYIHIAOS 3Ki NI ONIZ8 GNY ONUAT ONY1 30 TINVd 5 iy | 7
40 303id Y ONY '0-$91420~2202 INFANOOO SY 03QH003 Nourw - /
G330 ALY SO00 0 | TV QWY 2158 1v1d i o W | -
08NS X31NS 40 7 207 40 NO'SINIJANS ¥ | 4 s i /
! AT 2/7 L OWI00E i |
NOISIAIJans d3Av3g o | 2101 sx.&b_, I e v 8/5 oS 0 av> mean T
" Al b S5 eom ARl Sl
150 LV AMYNINIINS. 20198 rz wid = w z | 135 INIHNNOW T¥OIdAL
SO o < 0 s 4 5RO = N Lo ‘08NS ¥31dMIS i K A \ |
suaLan og P ooz — L suIY 6 -
| A 70 28158 ON L¥1d Ele 1505 cezers: £\
R l z m 5 €6 2875 / ,
1334 202 RVl o0t B TV GRS AT NWE < _ i /2 Q1S300Y YXSYIY NYIQRIN Cavm3S
£ ah - ———— 29 m./ \ “ / 20 15Y3 2 oN a.t UAON B ON IHSNMOL) VLYO 0x003y (S¥)
fdon epuady I gl (LOMISIC ONIGHODZY NNV It NI G3CHOH
a2 FH | / (0-$9UVZ0~2767 “ON ININNIO 0330 AINVEUVA VI¥d 0HOD3 (r2)
9288 ‘ON 1v1d zz 3 ! (bc-21 O 1¥13 HIIN 1G¥D) VAVO 02003y (5¥)
e e X3 NSO ATV asns N3 g am mw @ | h / (9£-85 "N 1¥1d NOBSAIOBNS INA3) YivQ 0c003y (2%)
¥SYIY 20 UiS I 203 A¥ION m e e i e (281-58 ON L¥1d NOSSINIGBNS XZ1dMIS) ¥1YQ Q¥0O3H (1a)
. 3 £ g2\ L / (952-81/9N 1¥1e NOLIGCY NISNALSIEHOS VIYG 020038 ()
B R © zin 3 2 9£-86 ON 11 A € o s e aes . w
e s S 4 - oansimG =T 8 £ AINUNS SHL 300 WEIY L6/5 O
TRGNOTS WONDDY SAUVION E o Szrz0-ce0: 5 ‘. \ 3o L / AINENS SHL QIGO0 WA 8/5 MO <¥0 1Y @
; 500033 3 ¥
57956 3 WITv< D 030034 40 LNINCKOR AvYIRd &
amens | L300 8 0L £ e saov 660 i 3% BN TV / W L0/5 ONIEMA o D AN ¢ 1% @
OMIBNDETW Hvapiv) e 15 TS GvBzoey \ .‘.m
240 £ ) vz 101 < \ e / /
z H
] e i 68291707207 "ON_ININNOOG 033G \ / st 101
3 6101 wao0sez “G3103440 38 OF \ / /
A5 -
O Z 96281 ON I¥1d — \ ! /
T2 NOSSINAOD
oery 0 via e sl NOLLIAOY NISNILSIHHO ———- ) o0z | /
Crayon 101
18 =20z » /
S 6101 - e i {5 ST T S S |
i Shu 3 438 0 NEONS ONY IBMOSANS SYWIN0 0330 dsise 3 sose S T T G i e
TNIROGTWONYIY S ANYION ) 05158 | 3 506580 € =
INGROGITHONYOV SAUVION K E 41 ALNON O 30VISO TiYoNd Gl B o e o i s o o i
Sv96s w NG @ _——— \ i /
Towo wisdsgne Kiers o & | €1 107
T m H \ | /
LUZSNOQ 3344 80 48 NOISWQBNS 40 Vs St 100y 2 S 4407 L1071 # z 101 T, S s s
it TN WV S WD CIIESSI0 N ML AL i B & R
S0 siwo Sy’ 3 behl TS5 Mot "R saioNn Jm 5 5 A
JIHSH3NMO 10 ALVOLINI0 e s s G
T AL 08 DS Gate z1 101
dVI ALINIOIA I 1= WS larnz 3 mem s . L. 067297 3 505508 5 | a0
PN s smRas T T Geedeisa oy 1T s
£} - - — — — —
T T EMERAT T e e T T T T T —— ! L 101
, 3903 o )t B0 0 Jase - /
| r / 959 'ON 1¥d
1101 ¢ / i Q8NS HLIWS 'V L 40 1Y1d Q3SIATY
— ] j
H ¢
s N SLtL TNV / LEL-PB ON LV Td ]
. / —_—————— ‘a8ns 3N . ,
. [ 08NS QMO4THOVHS / o101
— 9EZ-8L ON 1¥1d v 10vHL
v w — NOLLIGOY NISNILSIMHD / V107
A 5101
: >
~— . v€ 107 sy
! \\ K HCIOIO 35N ONVT ONY ININNYIS
ra— e 1o o et e
o5 v e WSS . g Wl NOUDTTIOS 0k
5101
WY W Oty 128 Wy MO WOSAGES 0 NOEIOINE I RS "
G30MOM A1e350%G 3L ASKIVE 207 HonouHL oo TSN ST, NOSWORNE B a0 NOBRIENE 4L 18
%% % o iy B Gy s S o et v S IR e T 5 e RTGNGS OF G0 NI SYH 1915 NOBNGSNS SHI A eT0 |
SHVI 30 NIV 35 IVOLHLEH AAVOLIYI0 5010310 350 GNVI GNY ONINNYd




